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of a Major or National carrier (as de-
scribed in 14 CFR 399.88), shall submit 
their program to the Department for 
review within 180 days of the effective 
date of this part. 

(2) The Department shall review each 
carrier’s program, which the carrier 
shall implement without further DOT 
action at the time it is submitted to 
the Department. 

(3) If the Department determines 
that any portion of a carrier’s plan 
must be amended, or provisions added 
or deleted, in order for the carrier to 
comply with this part, DOT will direct 
the carrier to make appropriate 
changes. The carrier shall incorporate 
these changes into its program and im-
plement them. 

(d) Other carriers shall maintain 
their programs on file, and shall make 
them available for review by the De-
partment on the Department’s request. 
If, upon such review, the Department 
determines that any portion of a car-
rier’s plan must be amended, or provi-
sions added or deleted, in order for the 
carrier to comply with this part, DOT 
will direct the carrier to make appro-
priate changes. The carrier shall incor-
porate these changes into its program 
and implement them.

§ 382.65 Compliance procedures. 
(a) Each carrier providing scheduled 

service shall establish and implement a 
complaint resolution mechanism, in-
cluding designating one or more com-
plaints resolution official(s) (CRO) to 
be available at each airport which the 
carrier serves. 

(1) The carrier shall make a CRO 
available to any person who complains 
of alleged violations of this part during 
all times the carrier is operating at the 
airport. 

(2) The carrier may make the CRO 
available via telephone, at no cost to 
the passenger, if the CRO is not present 
in person at the airport at the time of 
the complaint. If a telephone link to 
the CRO is used, TDD service shall be 
available so that persons with hearing 
impairments may readily communicate 
with the CRO. 

(3) Each CRO shall be thoroughly fa-
miliar with the requirements of this 
part and the carrier’s procedures with 
respect to individuals with a disability. 

(4) Each CRO shall have the author-
ity to make dispositive resolution of 
complaints on behalf of the carrier. 

(5) When a complaint is made to a 
CRO, the CRO shall promptly take dis-
positive action as follows: 

(i) If the complaint is made to a CRO 
before the action or proposed action of 
carrier personnel has resulted in a vio-
lation of a provision of this part, the 
CRO shall take or direct other carrier 
personnel to take action, as necessary, 
to ensure compliance with this part. 
Provided, That the CRO is not required 
to be given authority to countermand a 
decision of the pilot-in-command of an 
aircraft based on safety. 

(ii) If an alleged violation of a provi-
sion of this part has already occurred, 
and the CRO agrees that a violation 
has occurred, the CRO shall provide to 
the complainant a written statement 
setting forth a summary of the facts 
and what steps, if any, the carrier pro-
poses to take in response to the viola-
tion. 

(iii) If the CRO determines that the 
carrier’s action does not violate a pro-
vision of this part, the CRO shall pro-
vide to the complainant a written 
statement including a summary of the 
facts and the reasons, under this part, 
for the determination. 

(iv) The statements required to be 
provided in paragraph (a)(5) of this sec-
tion shall inform the complainant of 
his or her right to pursue DOT enforce-
ment action under this section. This 
statement shall be provided in person 
to the complainant at the airport if 
possible; otherwise, it shall be for-
warded to the complainant within 10 
calendar days of the complaint. 

(b) Each carrier shall establish a pro-
cedure for resolving written complaints 
alleging violation of the provisions of 
this part. 

(1) A carrier is not required to re-
spond to a complaint postmarked more 
than 45 days after the date of the al-
leged violation. 

(2) A written complaint shall state 
whether the complainant has contacted 
a CRO in the matter, the name of the 
CRO and the date of the contact, if 
available, and include any written re-
sponse received from the CRO.
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(3) The carrier shall make a disposi-
tive written response to a written com-
plaint alleging a violation of a provi-
sion of this part within 30 days of its 
receipt. 

(i) If the carrier agrees that a viola-
tion has occurred, the carrier shall pro-
vide to the complainant a written 
statement setting forth a summary of 
the facts and what steps, if any, the 
carrier proposes to take in response to 
the violation. 

(ii) If the carrier denies that a viola-
tion has occurred, the response shall 
include a summary of the facts and the 
carrier’s reasons, under this part, for 
the determination. 

(iii) The statements required to be 
provided in paragraph (b)(3) of this sec-
tion shall inform the complainant of 
his or her right to pursue DOT enforce-
ment action under this section. 

(c) Any person believing that a car-
rier has violated any provision of this 
part may contact the following office 
for assistance: Department of Trans-
portation, Office of Consumer Affairs, 
400 7th Street, SW., Washington, DC 
20590, (202) 366–2220. 

(d) Any person believing that a car-
rier has violated any provision of this 
part may file a formal complaint under 
the applicable procedures of 14 CFR 
part 302.

PART 383—CIVIL PENALTIES

Sec.
383.1 Basis and purpose. 
383.2 Amount of penalty.

AUTHORITY: Secs. 222, 706, 707(b), Pub. L. 
106–181, 114 Stat. 61; Pub. L. 101–410, 104 Stat. 
890, as amended by sec. 31001, Pub. L. 104–134, 
110 Stat. 1321.

SOURCE: Docket No. OST 2000–8058, 65 FR 
61090, Oct. 16, 2000, unless otherwise noted.

§ 383.1 Basis and purpose. 
(a) Basis. This part implements the 

civil penalty provisions of the Wendell 
H. Ford Aviation Investment and Re-
form Act for the 21st Century (AIR 21, 
Pub. L. 106–181; 114 Stat. 61; April 5, 
2000, sections 222, 706, 707(b)), and the 
Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Ad-
justment Act of 1990 (Pub. L. 101–410), 
as amended by the Debt Collection Im-
provement Act of 1996 (Pub. L. 104–134, 
section 31001). The Debt Collection Im-
provement Act requires each agency 
head to adjust by regulation each civil 
monetary penalty provided by law by 
the inflation adjustment described 
under section 5 of the Federal Civil 
Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act. 
We have applied these guidelines to the 
civil penalty amounts that were not af-
fected by AIR 21 and, taking into ac-
count the inflation that has occurred 
since the most recent adjustment, have 
found that no further adjustment is 
warranted as of June 2000. 

(b) Purpose. This part states the civil 
penalty amounts with respect to viola-
tions of 49 U.S.C. 40127, 41705 and 41712 
and other civil penalties provided in 49 
U.S.C. 46301 (a)(1) for violations covered 
by this chapter.

§ 383.2 Amount of penalty. 
A person is liable to the United 

States Government for a civil penalty 
of not more than $10,000 for each viola-
tion of 49 U.S.C. 41705 and a civil pen-
alty of not more than $2,500 for each 
violation of 49 U.S.C. 40127 or 41712. For 
other violations of this chapter within 
the scope of 49 U.S.C. 46301, the civil 
penalty amount is $1,100.
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